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COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF AND
FOR CIVIL PENALTIES UNDER THE COMMODITY EXCHANGE ACT

I.

SUMMARY

1. This is a civil action brought by Plaintiff Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (“Commission”), an independent regulatory agency of the United States, to enforce
claims brought under the Commodity Exchange Act (“Act”), 7 U.S.C. § 1 et seq. (2002), and the

Commission’s Regulations (“Regulations™), 17 C.F.R. § 1 ef seq. (2005).

2. Since at least 1995 and continuing through February 2003, (the “relevant time”),
Carl W. King (“King”), individually and as the agent of Carl W. King Investments, LLP (“King

Investments™) (collectively “Defendants™), engaged in a scheme to defraud customers.
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3. King told potential customers that King Investments actively managed money for
individual customers by trading commodity futures contracts on their behalf, and historically

achieved approximately 20% annual profit returns.

4, The Defendants accepted money from individual customers and placed the money

in an account in the name of King Investments (“the Corporate Account”).

5. After receiving money from individual customers, the Defendants did not invest
the money in commodity futures trading, but left the money in the Corporate Account. Although
the money left in the Corporate Account generated little or no profit, the Defendants fraudulently
represented to customers that their money was actively invested and that the investments yielded
approximately 20% annual profits. The Defendants issued false statements to customers with
representations of earnings of approximately 20% per annum in order to conceal the fact that

customer funds were not actually being traded in commodity futures contracts as represented.

6. For those customers who requested periodic profit payments, the Defendants
used other customers’ funds to pay purported profits. For those customers who requested that
their profit payments be reinvested, the Defendants fraudulently represented that their profit was

being reinvested.

7. Throughout the relevant time, King withdrew and used customers’ funds for

personal expenses and for operating expenses of King Investments.

8. Thus, King engaged in, is engaging in, or is about to engage in acts and practices
that violate the anti-fraud provisions of the Commodity Exchange Act (“Act”), 7 U.S.C. §§ 1 et
seq. (2002). Specifically, King violated Sections 4b(a)(i), (ii) & (iii) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6b

(2002), by making material misrepresentations and omissions, by misrepresenting account
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balances, by creating false statements for customers in connection with commodity futures
transactions, and by misappropriating customer funds. King Investments is liable for King’s
violations pursuant to Section 2(a)(1)(B) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1).

9. Accordingly, pursuant to Section 6¢ of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2002), the
Commission brings this action to enjoin the unlawful acts and practices of Defendants King and
King Investments and to compel their compliance with the provisions of the Act and Regulations
thereunder. In addition, the Commission seeks civil penalties, disgorgement, restitution to
customers, an accounting and such other equitable relief as the Court may deem necessary or
appropriate.

IL

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

10.  The Act prohibits fraud in connection with the trading of commodity futures
contracts and establishes a comprehensive system for regulating the purchase and sale of such
contracts. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 6¢ of the Act, 7 U.S.C.
§ 13a-1 (2002), which authorizes the Commission to seek injunctive relief against any person
whenever it shall appear that such person has engaged, is engaging, or is about to engage in any
act or practice constituting a violation of any provision of the Act or any rule, regulation or order
thereunder.

11.  Venue properly lies with this Court pursuant to Section 6¢(e) of the Act, 7 U.S.C.
§ 13a-1(e) (2002), in that Defendants are found in, inhabit, or transact business in this district,
and the acts and practices in violation of the Act have occurred, are occurring, or are about to

occur within this district, among other places.
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12.  Unless enjoined by this Court, the Defendants are likely to continue to engage in
the acts and practices alleged in this Complaint and similar acts and practices, as more fully
described below.

II1.

THE PARTIES

13.  Plaintiff Commodity Futures Trading Commission is an independent federal
regulatory agency that is charged with responsibility for administering and enforcing the
provisions of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seq. (2002), and the Regulations promulgated thereunder,
17 CF.R. §§ 1 et seq. (2004).

14.  Defendant Carl W. King is currently serving an 87 month prison term in the
Federal Bureau of Prisons and is housed at FCI Seagoville, 2113 North Highway 175,
Seagoville, Texas 75159. At all relevant times, King was President, Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQO”) and day-to-day decision-maker of Defendant King Investments. King has no current
registration status with the National Futures Association (“NFA”). However, from 1983-1984 he
was registered as an Associated Person (“AP”) of Bateman, Eichler, Hill, Richards, Inc. before
withdrawing his registration in 1984. From 1984-1985, King was registered as an AP of
McCormick Futures Inc.; he withdrew his registration in 1985. Finally, King was registered with
the NFA from 1985-1990 as a Principal of Introducing Broker (“IB”’) Carl W. King d/b/a Carl
W. King Investments until that registration was withdrawn in 1990. Subsequently, King
established Defendant King Investment that is a separate entity from the defunct IB.

15.  Defendant Carl W. King Investments, LLP is a Texas limited liability

partnership located at 5956 Sherry Lane, Suite 1000, Dallas, Texas 75225. King was the
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President and CEO of King Investments. King Investments has never been registered with the
Commission in any capacity.
IV.
FACTS

16.  From 1995 and continuing through February 2003, King, through King
Investments, accepted funds from customers to trade commodity futures contracts on their
behalf. King claimed to produce approximately 20% annual profits for customers.

17.  During the relevant time, the Defendants received at least $9 million from at least
60 customers located within and outside of this district for the purported purpose of investing in
commodity futures contracts.

18.  During the course of the scheme, King was President and Chief Executive Officer
of King Investments. King made material misrepresentations by telling customers that he
managed over $15 million in assets and that he achieved positive returns, some years yielding
profits in excess of 20%.

19.  King, knowingly or with reckless disregard for the truth of the matter, also
omitted material information such as failing to advise customers that none of the funds were used
to purchase commodity futures contracts, and that the customers’ funds were spent on King’s
salary, office rent, home mortgage, and health care expenses for relatives, among other things.

20.  As part of the scheme, King returned some of the customers’ funds in the form of
purported profit payments and return of principal. To lend credibility to the scheme, King sent
out false statements to customers showing a profit on the principal, filed false tax forms and

created a false set of books showing his “profitability.”
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21.  Many customers, who thought the Defendants were investing their money and
generating profits, instructed King to reinvest their profit payments, only to lose all of their

investments.

22.  During the course of the scheme, King and King Investments took in
approximately $9 million and returned approximately $4.5 million in the form of purported profit

payments and return of the principal.

23.  King signed a plea agreement in U.S. v. Carl W. King, Eastern District of Texas,
case number 4:03-CR-166, under oath, in which he admitted that he never invested the
customers’ funds as promised and instead spent the customers’ funds on, among other things,
salary, office rent, home mortgage, and health care expenses for relatives. King also admitted to

generating false account statements and mailing them to customers.

24, On July 27, 2004, King was sentenced to 87 months in prison and ordered to pay

$4,499,146.51 in restitution.

V.
VIOLATIONS OF THE COMMODITY EXCHANGE ACT
COUNTI1

Violations of Sections 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) of the Act
Fraud by Misrepresentation and Misappropriation

25.  Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 24 above and incorporates those
allegations herein by reference.

26.  Section 4b(a)(2) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2) (2002) makes it unlawful for any
person to cheat, defraud or deceive or attempt to cheat, defraud or deceive such other persons in

connection with any order to make, or the making of, any contract of sale of any commodity for
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future delivery made, or to be made, for or on behalf of any other person where such contract for
future delivery was or may have been used for (a) hedging any transaction in interstate
commerce in such commodity, or the products or byproducts thereof, or (b) determining the price
basis of any transaction in interstate commerce in such commodity, or (¢) delivering any such
commodity sold, shipped or received in interstate commerce for the fulfillment thereof.

27.  During the relevant time, King violated Sections 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) of the Act,

7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) (2002), in that he cheated or defrauded or attempted to cheat or
defraud customers, and willfully deceived or attempted to deceive customers by, among other
things: misrepresenting to customers that their funds were being used to trade commodity
futures when they were not; misrepresenting to customers the profits and value of their accounts;
and misappropriating customer funds for his personal use.

28.  King engaged in such conduct as an agent of King Investments, therefore King
Investments as principal is liable for his violations of Sections 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) of the Act,
pursuant to Section 2(a)(1)(B) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)}(B) (2002).

29.  Each material misrepresentation or omission, and each willful deception made
during the relevant time period, including but not limited to those specifically alleged herein, is
alleged as a separate and distinct violation of Sections 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) of the Act, 7 U.S.C.

§§ 6b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) (2002).
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COUNT II

Violations of Section 4b(a)(2)(ii) of the Act
Fraud by Making False Records

30.  Plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 29 above and incorporates those
allegations herein by reference.

31.  Section 4b(a)(2)(ii) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(ii) (2002) makes it unlawful
for any person to willfully make or cause to be made to other persons false reports or statements,
or willfully to enter or cause to be entered for other persons false records in or in connection with
orders to make, or the making of, contracts of sale of commodities for future delivery, made, or
to be made, for or on behalf of such other persons where such contracts for future delivery were
or may have been used for (a) hedging any transaction in interstate commerce in such
commodity, or the products or byproducts thereof, or (b) determining the price basis of any
transaction in interstate commerce in such commodity, or (¢) delivering any such commodity
sold, shipped or received in interstate commerce for the fulfillment thereof.

32.  During the relevant time, King violated Section 4b(a)(2)(ii) of the Act, 7 U.S.C.

§ 6b(a)(2)(ii) (2002), in that King, or persons working under his direction, willfully made or
caused to be made false reports or statements thereof by preparing and delivering to customers
false trading account statements that purported to show profits made on their commodity futures
accounts when in fact very little of the customer funds was ever invested.

33.  King engaged in such conduct as an agent of King Investments, therefore King
Investments as principal is liable for his violations of Section 4b(a)(2)(ii) of the Act,

7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(ii) (2002), pursuant to Section 2(a)(1)(B) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §2(a)(1)(B)

(2002).
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34.  Each false report or statement made during the relevant time period, including but
not limited to those specifically alleged herein, is alleged as a separate and distinct violation of
Section 4b(a)(2)(ii) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(ii) (2002).

VL

RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that this Court, as authorized by
Section 6¢ of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2002), and pursuant to its own equitable powers:

A. Find the Defendants liable for violating Section 4b of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6b
(2002);

B. Enter a permanent injunction prohibiting the Defendants and any other person or
entity associated with them, or any successor thereof, from engaging in conduct
violative of the provisions of the Act as alleged in this Complaint, and from
engaging in any activity relating to commodity interest trading, including but not
limited to, soliciting, accepting or receiving funds, revenue or other property from
any person, giving advice for compensation, or soliciting prospective clients,
participants or customers, related to the purchase and sale of any commodity
futures or options on commodity futures contracts;

C. Enter an order directing the Defendants and any successors thereof, to disgorge,
pursuant to such procedure as the Court may order, all benefits received from the
acts or practices which constituted violations of the Act, as described herein, and
interest thereon from the date of such violations;

D. Enter an order directing the Defendants to make full restitution to every client,

participant or customer whose funds were received by them as a result of acts and
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practices which constituted violations of the Act, as described herein, and interest
thereon from the date of such violations;

Enter an order directing the Defendants to pay a civil monetary penalty in the
amount of not more than the higher of (i) triple the monetary gain to Defendants
for each violation of the Act or (ii) $120,000 for each violation of the Act prior to
October 23, 2004;

Enter an order requiring Defendants to pay costs and fees as permitted by

28 U.S.C. §§ 1920 and 2412(a)(2); and,

Enter an order providing such other and further remedial ancillary relief as the

Court may deem appropriate.

10
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